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MEMORIAL GRANDSTAND AND GATES

Location:
EASTERN RESERVE, 70 HOPKINS STREET WINCHELSEA, SURF COAST SHIRE

Heritage Status / Level of Significance:
Registered
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Heritage Overlay Number: HO89

Statement of Significance:
What is Significant? 
The grandstand at the Eastern Reserve, Winchelsea was erected in 1923 as a functional memorial to the
people of Winchelsea and district who served in the armed services in the First World War. The brick and
metal gates were built in 1952 to commemorate the service of the men and women of Winchelsea in World
War Two, and to provide the main entrance to Eastern Reserve. Together the grandstand and gates form the
Winchelsea war memorial precinct at the most prominent sports reserve in town. 

Despite the small population of Winchelsea, funds for a World War One memorial were raised by public
donation, resulting in the erection of a substantial grandstand, incorporating the Winchelsea and District
Branch of the Returned & Services League (RSL) clubrooms under the seating. It was built by voluntary labour
at a cost of £775. A local business group was involved in its construction, using the Knitlock system, patented
in Australia by Walter Burley Griffin in 1917 and described by him in Australian Home Builder in 1922. This
system was developed as an economical and quick do-it-yourself construction system, with machine produced
standard concrete tiles, or segments, which were fitted together on site. 

It appears that three local men were involved in the development of the Knitlock system of construction in
Winchelsea; Mr Anderson (finance), H. E. Warner (builder) and A. McDonald, who established a Knitlock
manufacturing works in a shed in Hesse Street, Winchelsea. Machines and timber moulds were used to cast
the concrete tiles, which were basically of two types; the vertebral, quadrant shaped block, that formed the
framework and the distinctive vertical piers, and the tesseral block that provided the wall infill. The former
blocks formed columns and corners and the latter were interlocked back to back with staggered joints, resulting
in smooth surfaces both externally and internally, and the facility to incorporate steel reinforcing rods in the
core between blocks. Blocks were one foot square and vertical piers, with hollow cores, placed at four foot
intervals. Timber moulds that were used in their manufacture have been retained, and are exhibited in the
collection of RSL memorabilia at the building. A number of tiles have also been retrieved and are in the
possession of the Winchelsea Historical Society. 

Walter Burley Griffin first used his patented system in 1919 and designed a number of houses using this
construction technique both in Victoria and New South Wales. Other architects, such as Klingender and Alsop,
also utilised this mode of construction and designed 'Jura' using Knitlock construction in Lorne in 1919. H. E.
Warner was one of the few builders in the district and some of his work was in Lorne, however it has not been
established whether he was the builder of this Knitlock house. The only other recorded use of Knitlock in
Winchelsea is a house that is extant, however not accessible to the public, and a fence, which has been
demolished.

The grandstand building is a two storey rectangular structure with hipped roof supported on timber trusses.
The approach side of the building contains a centrally placed plaque at the upper level and four regularly
spaced windows between piers at the lower level. The symmetrical oval facade incorporates a centrally placed
gable end and two sets of stairs leading to the simple step seating. The viewing bays can be closed by the
lowering of hinged timber panels which are otherwise secured horizontally by a catch system on the tie beam
of the roof trusses. Timber side infill panels can also be removed for better viewing of the oval. 

The building still contains the RSL clubrooms and now houses a collection of services memorabilia pertaining
to the local community. It is also used for commemoration services and the viewing of sporting activities which
continue to frequently take place on the oval. A former players' room at the western end of the building, with
access to the oval, is now used as an umpires' room. 

How is it significant? 
The memorial grandstand, Winchelsea is of architectural, historical and social significance to the State of
Victoria. 

Why is it significant? 
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The memorial grandstand, Winchelsea is of architectural significance as an example of the use of the Knitlock
system of construction. This system as a do-it-yourself means of building was not a great success, perhaps
because it required greater skill than initially thought. As a result there are a limited number of extant examples
of its use. The grandstand is also a rare example of the system applied to a non-residential building, the only
other recorded examples being the Towler Real Estate Agency, Edithvale (1925, since demolished) and the
Oatlands Country Golf Clubhouse, Telopea, NSW. As such it appears to be a rare example of Knitlock
construction applied to a public building in Australia. It is also unusual for it to be applied to a two storey
structure and important due to its unpainted condition on the approach side, which clearly indicates the
construction system adopted. The building also incorporates the unusual device of hinged timber panels, that
can be lowered to secure the open grandstand, and removable side panels that provide enclosure to the
otherwise open sides. It would appear that this is an unusual inclusion in a grandstand design and no other
examples have been located. 

The memorial grandstand, Winchelsea is of historical and social significance due to its associations with World
War One and the impact it had on the Australian community. It is a rare example of a war memorial erected as
a functional public building. It was more common for World War One memorials to take various monumental
forms than to be constructed as utilitarian buildings. If the latter was adopted, it was most commonly in the form
of a memorial hall, and in a small number of cases a hospital or school. It is most unusual for a grandstand to
be erected for this purpose, and only a small number have been identified. These include Allansford Memorial
Pavilion (1922), Memorial Pavilion, Anzac Park, Warracknabeal (1923) and the Soldiers and Sailors Memorial
Pavilion, Gardens Oval, Port Fairy (1923). These are all of typical timber construction.
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This place/object may also be State heritage listed. Check the Victorian Heritage Database. For further details, contact the
local Council or go to Planning Schemes Online
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